MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL
Wednesday, April 24, 2024 at 6:00 PM, Borough Office
114 W. Catawissa Street, Nesquehoning, PA 18240

PLEDGE OF ALLEGANCE

ROLL CALL: COUNCILWOMEN/COUNCILMEN FOX, SMITH, KUBA, NALESNIK, KATTNER, SHUBECK,
PRESIDENT HAWK, MAYOR KATTNER & SOLICITOR YURCHAK

MINUTES: Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to approve the minutes from the Regular Meeting held
on March 27, 2024 and the Workshop Meeting held on April 10, 2024, seconded by Councilwomen Fox,
all in favor of motion, motion passed.

President Hawk said before we head into Hearing of Visitors, we do have some distinguished visitors
here tonight, that we would like to recognize. Mr. Tony Cerimele and his family is here representing the
business of New Columbus Pizza Company. The Borough would like adopt a Resolution in your honor.
Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to adopt a Resolution honoring Tony Cerimele, seconded by
Councilwomen Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed. Mayor Kattner then spoke he said, you should
be proud of your history and of yourself. He asked Mr. Cerimele to come up to the front and handed
him the Proclamation. He then proceeded to read the Proclamation out loud. Tony Cerimele thanked
all of council for the recognition. Tony Cerimele did say that it was an honor and that there are no
words to say and that | am still in shock from a couple of weeks ago. Until they plant me, | will still be
making pizza for New Columbus Pizza Company.

HEARING OF VISITORS: Kristin VanBleek stated that she spoke at last month meeting about School and
Mill, about a Stop sign at the intersection. She said she was wondering if there was any kind of update.
Solicitor Yurchak responded that the Ordinance was drafted and once advertised, it would be ready for
adoption at the next Borough meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION & ZONING HEARING REPORT: President Hawk did state that we did receive a
request from the VFW Post 8088 to waiver the fees for the Land Development Plans and the Building
permit fees for the construction for the pavilion at their property on the East end of town.
Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to waiver all fees for the land development plans and the building
permits for the VFW Post 8088, seconded by Councilmen Kattner, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

SOLICITOR’S REPORT: Solicitor Yurchak started with the Police Contract. He said that the Police
Contract is already to go and need to do a motion to accept. Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to
adopt the Police Contract, seconded by Councilwomen Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed.
Solicitor Yurchak mention the Police task force agreement, he said told Chief Weaver that he had a
couple of questions and he said that he contacted someone and he was told that the Agreement was on
hold, because there are things in there that the Borough is not protected for liability and we may get
reimbursement for overtime, it does not state we shall, so there are a couple of questions. Solicitor
Yurchak mentioned the handicap parking, he said that there were a few questions raised about people
not using them. He said the he recommends that we redo the whole Ordinance, there is a lot of things
that need to be changed, right now, it does not say that we have to make them use their handicapped
parking spot, unless we have a designated number. If they have a number then nobody else could use
that space. We can’t make them get the number. If they are not using it and somebody else is using we
could call into question whether or not they need the spot, | think we should revisit the Ordinance.




President Hawk said this could help us do an annual review and again bring into question as to whether
or not it is being utilitzed, is it really needed, it is our discretion to grant the parking spot, even with
having the medical side of it, is part of what we use to grant, but it is still our discretion to grant.
Councilwomen Kuba asked if there is a Master List of everyone in town who has a handicapped parking
spot. She said that we should have a list and there are people who are no longer living there and
therefore the handicapped spot if no longer warranted. Councilwomen made a motion to authorize
Solicitor Yurchak to work on updating the Handicapped Parking Ordinance, seconded by Councilwomen
Shubeck, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

Solitor Yurchak reported about the Stop Sign Ordinance with regards to School Street, heading North
with the intersection of Mill Street. That will be ready to advertise and put onto next month meeting to
adopt. Councilwomen Smith made a motion to have Solicitor Yurchak advertise the Stop Sign
Ordinance, seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in favor of the motion, motion passed.

Solicitor Yurchak reported he and John McArdle spoke about the Life Safety Ordinance, | am primarily
updating the year on it, so this would make the Ordinance for the 2023, to be advertised to a new
version. Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to update the Life Safety Ordinance to 2023 and to
advertise the new version, seconded by Councilwomen Smith, all in favor of motion, motion passed.
Solicitor Yurchak spoke about the Police Pension Ordinance, that there was a request from one of the
officer to lower the age for retirement and he said he sent it off to the actuary to review, so we know
what the effect is before it is adopted.

Councilwomen Fox made a motion to accept Solicitor’s Report, seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in
favor of motion, motion passed.

TREASURER’S REPORT & CD REPORT: Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s
Report and CD Report, seconded by Councilwomen Fox.

EXONERATIONS: There are five exonerations requests; 2 for non-resident; 1 for deceased; 2 for SSI.
Councilmen Kattner made a motion to accept the exonerations, seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in
favor of motion, motion passed.

APPLICATIONS: Did receive one application

COMMUNICATIONS: Six items of communication came in and we would need to act on two of the
items, the VFW has requested the closing of the road on East Center Street for a fundraiser on May 11"
and also for a Children’s Bike Rodeo on June 2™, Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to approve the
road closures for the two events, seconded by Councilwomen Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed.
Motion was made by Councilwomen Smith to place application and all communications on file,
seconded by Councilwomen Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

COMMITTEES:

POLICE & PUBLIC SAFETY: Councilwomen Kuba reported that body cameras are up and running, no
problems. There has been a lot of training in the last two weeks. Boot drive was very successful, each
fire company received $1,836.00 each. Thank you all that participated. Chief Weaver reported that all
body cameras are running all officers have one. All officers train on the active shooter course level 1,
and also in the last week, we rapped up today training. Councilwomen Kuba said that she wanted to
touch base on the recent theft in the community, with bells taken from the Historical Society and that
the police were already on it and that an arrest was made, | would just like to put it out there to the
public to be very diligent on things and we see now that this is really hitting the community. If you see




something please contact the police right away and tell them. We really have to watch the crime, it is
here. No property is safe, if they are going to get in they are going to steal. Councilmen Nalesnik
reported that council asked for a little more detail on the code complaints from the police department, |
just want to point out that there is a report and wanted to talk the police department. Councilwomen
Kuba said that if you see your neighbor’s property is a mess, come in a fill out a report and it will be
looked into within a day. We can’t look at things if we don’t know they are there.

MAYOR’S REPORT: Like to thank the police department.

POLICE REPORT: Mayor Kattner reported money that was received. Magistrate Dobson: vehicle, crime
code and misc. $958.19; Local Ordinance: $71.38; Title-18 Payable to Municipality: $263.49; Title-75,
Motor vehicles: $623.32; Individual Restitution: $ 61.45. Parking Tickets $100.00; Moving Permits $28
@ $280.00; Accident Report 2 @ $30.00, bringing a total of $1,429.64. Traffic Citations Issued 4; Code
Complaints Resolved 24; Total calls for the month 205.

Fire Report Summary: President Hawk reported 3-mutal aid (1-westpenn; 1 mahanoy city; 1 Jim
Thorpe; 1- brush fire; 2 CO; 1 LZ; 1 tree down; 1 motor vehicle, bringing a total of 29 fire department
responses for the year.

President Hawk reported that there is a handicapped parking application for 24 West Rhume Street that
has been cleared through the police department. Councilwomen Kuba made motion, seconded by
Councilwomen Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

HOUSING & CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT: President Hawk reported for March, there were
three contacts and total money received for permits was $120.00. As previously mentioned the report
from the police department, they had 11 investigations performed in March and we have report from
Chip Stalega from Barry Isett was 45 contacts investigated.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT REPORT: John McArdle reported they had a very productive meeting with
the Reading Blue Mountain Railroad. We touched on a lot of things and one of our main concerns was
communication, there seems to be a bit of lack of communication. We just had an incident over the
past weekend where the railroad crossing was closed up at Ametek, and they were in the process of
putting a signal system up there, but | was alerted Friday that we had a fire call and they notes that the
railroad was there, | went back that evening and saw that the crossing was closed and found out that
they opened the crossing which is considered the White House, if anything would have happened to
Ametek or Plant 21 we would not be able to get there, so we can’t stress the importance if they are
going to do any work to notify the borough which then can be sent to the other departments. There
were other things that came out | will let Council speak on that. It did seem that at the end of the
meeting they wanted to work with us. Councilwomen Fox made a motion to accept the Police and
Public Safety, Mayor Report, Police Report, Fire Report, Housing and Zoning Reports, EMA report,
seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

STREETS: Councilmen Nalesnik reported about the reminder for the borough and residents about the
street sweeping that will be taking place from May 6™ to the 10™. It is also posted on the website. We
will have an anticipated street schedule also posted before it starts, it is subject to change. We will ask
that residents respect the signage and move their vehicles and if residents want to sweep their
sidewalks for to the street, feel free to do so. The bids for our 2024 road projects will be going out and
opening of bids on May 20" and hopefully awarding at the May 22" meeting. As discussed in workshop



the Industrial Road pipe replacement project, | met with engineer today on site, we got togetherto do a
plan for that, he is checking to see if a DEP permit is needed, but we already have the pipe, so it will
required some excavating assistance with borough workers doing most of the work. We are going to
continue to cold patch as needed, anyone sees a problem contact the borough of myself directly and we
will get it patched. They have been up at New Columbus Park the last couple of days, we got hot patch
to do the sidewalk and using the roller in front of the basketball court. The surveying has begun on New
Columbus Park, the surveyor is looking for the original deed on the large section. We will see if we could
find something on that. Councilmen Kattner mentioned that | had the broken air compressor on
facebook marketplace and that after many challenging people, we finally found someone to buy and he
came up today and looked at the compressor and made an offer of $300.00, which we were acceptable
on, so after the borough workers get done unhooking the plumbing and electrical from it, | will be back
in contact to pick up. So we will be getting $300.00. Councilmen Nalesnik said that the new air
compressor was at the garage waiting to get installed. Councilwomen Fox mentioned that she saw in
Jim Thorpe the large signs that tell residents what is going on. She asked if it was from DEP and that
maybe we should be looking into that. Councilmen Nalesnik said he would look into it.

SEWER: Councilwomen Fox made a motion to accept the March 2024 Sewer/Sanitation Report,
seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in favor of motion, motion passed. Councilwomen Fox made a
motion to purchase the drone from Amazon, and that it would be beneficial for all departments to use,
seconded by Councilwomen Shubeck, all in favor of motion, motion passed. Mayor Kattner asked who
would be in charge of the drone, if someone other than sewer needed to use, Councilwomen Fox said
that Bob Pilla in the Sewer department would have access and to just contact him. Councilwomen Fox
reported that she did follow up on a complaint made by Mr. Brown and she did leave a message. She
said everytime she calls and leaves a message, he has not called back. Councilwomen Shubeck asked
why he keeps calling. Councilwomen Fox said that it has to do with his check value in the yard and she
explained that the borough put the check valve in and that after that he was to maintain it. She has
explain it to him several times. Councilwomen Fox reported that they had the pleasure of meeting Mr.
Andy Mueller from the railroad and we had a very productive meeting with Blue Mountain Reading
RailRoad. Ourissues down at the plant, the access road to the plant are going to be solved and also an
agreement will be put in place for maintenance for the sewer and water lines at the west end of town.
It was an extremely productive meeting. The initial agreement must have been drawn up with the
county, conrail or whomever was running those lines at the time in the early 90’s that is when it was
drawn up. Mr. Mueller was very accommodating today and he seems to very much wants to work with
the borough. | came out of the meeting with a different attitude than when | went in. Councilmen
Kattner mentioned that zoom meetings are good, but when you come face to face with someone, it is a
different ballgame. Councilwomen Fox mentioned that George Decarlantonio from the PUC, asked the
railroad to have someone attend the meeting that could make decisions and Andy Mueller showed up at
the meeting. He makes all decisions, and that is going to help the borough out and like John McArdle
said, it only takes a phone call to tell someone what is going on.

BUILDINGS GROUNDS: Councilmen Kattner reported that he contacted the chimney company, and that
they are to get the supplies sometime this week and will let him know when the install is going to
happen. Also, that | found out in the general maintenance of our exterminator maintenance of the
recreation center, the found some activity of termites, so the company is going to do a free estimate on
what if could possibly cost for them to be removed and of any proof the damage and the termites
themselves being in the building and perhaps to have some more ideas about what to do around
workshop meeting. Councilmen Nalesnik said that he thinks that we have a maintenance agreement
with them and now they are telling us we have termites. He mentioned that we had them years ago,




but we could discuss further at workshop and figure out what route to go after we get some estimates.
Councilmen Nalesnik mentioned that he spoke with road department guys about the flag poles at the
Lions monument up the block, the poles are tilted in different direction over time, so | have asked the
workers to put their heads together and see what they can do with the poles, on straightening them
out.

SANITATION & QUALITY OF LIFE: Councilwomen Smith made a motion to accept the March 2024
Tamagqua Transfer Tonnage Report of 135.5 tons, seconded by Councilwomen Kuba, all in favor of
motion, motion passed. She said about sitting down and getting some information with regards to the
new garbage contract that is coming up this year, a lot of people are interested in recycling again. We
are going to gather information on. Just a reminder that the recycling event is on Monday, May 21 at
50 Locust Street from 2-5 or until truck is filled, we have papers on line and in the office.

BLIGHT: Councilwomen Smith mentioned about the fire in town, letters were sent out to the
owners that were affected. Two of the residents have come in and talked about what were they are at
the stage of the game, | explained to them, one had not picked up the letter as of yet, so we briefly went
over that and where we stand that they have a 60 day response from them. Councilwomen Shubeck did
start to get estimates to have the houses torn down and also have a request into another company that
is willing to do that besides Mr. Radocha. Once we get those responses back, one way or another, we
could move quickly. Councilmen Nalesnik asked if anyone else put an estimate in for the tear down and
Councilwomen Smith said no only Mr. Radocha. Mayor Kattner said that he is very worried about the
structure falling down at any time. Councilwomen Kuba said that with heavy winds and rain, the houses
may fall. Councilwomen Smith said that these people are already stressed and we are adding the
pressure to have the houses torn down right away, they need to look at all their options she said. She
said she would never want to be in this position, but as a borough we need to look at what is good for
the community. Councilwomen Kuba said that they have 60 days to respond to an emergency tear
down. So they 60 days and then we get sixty days she asked? Solicitor Yurchak commented by saying
that shortly after the 60 days to tear down the house. Councilwomen Kuba asked if in fact they do have
sixty days? Solicitor Yurchak said that he is sure that Chip Stalega gave them that in the notice of
violation. Councilwomen Smith did say that she told the residents to read the letter and then if they
had any questions, to contact Chip or borough or Chief McArdle to an answer any questions. She then
said that she does not want to answer for any of the residents, but she did get a little more information
of what the position they are going to go. It is not a quick easy decision for the resident to make.
Councilmen Nalesnik stated that he did receive a copy of the letter and that there was no time line in
the letter. We never told them a time frame. Solicitor Yurchak suggested that we have Chip Stalega do
that. Some type of letter giving them some kind of time. Councilwomen Smith said she would speak
with Chip Stalega about him doing a letter. She asked what the time frame date would be and Solicitor
Yurchak said that it would be from the date of the notice of violation. Mr. Radocha said that when you
call for an emergency tear down, prices change because of schedule, | gave best price possible at that
time. This is deemed an emergency, it should have been down that day or the next day. He said that he
hopes the borough has an escrow account for fires and we do. He said the emergency one is that John
McArdle calls and the tear down happens right then and there or next day. That one house is very bad.
Solicitor Yurchak said that he suggests that someone contact the owners and indicate what Mr. Rachoda
just said, that the price can’t be held forever, so it is likely to go up if they wait too long, so maybe we
could move it along. John McArdle mentioned that if he has a fire in the middle of the night, and it is
unstable and it is going to fall down, what do we do, and they have no insurance. Solicitor Yurchak said
that Chip would have to do an immediate tear down. Mr Radocha, Jr. said that if John McArdle as Fire
Chief deems it an immediate tear down, then it gets torn down that night or the very next day, no if
ands or buts. Councilwomen Shubeck asked if we are at that stage, why the 60 days. Solicitor Yurchak




said that Chip Stalega sent out a notice of violation. Councilmen Nalesnik said that before we spend a
monster amount of borough money (tax payor money) we want to give them the opportunity to take it
upon themselves to have the house taken down. At this point we should ask for their intentions and
give them a date that the house is coming down. Are you going to tear the buildings down, so we know
what we are going to do. John McArdle said that if we are doing an emergency tear down, what
happens to the property afterwards? We put a lien on the property he asked and shouldn’t the borough
be able to recoupe some of the money and yes that is purpose of the lien per Solicitor Yurchak.
Councilmen Kattner asked if there is any way to bump up the time table on the tear down.
Councilwomen Smith stated that she had both of the resident’s contact information and | could reach
out to them tomorrow, and | extended to both of them, if they wanted to come to a meeting to talk
about this or meet privately, but feel that it would be better coming from an actual human than a letter.
She said that one of the fireman came in and said that the half double although not condemned by us
per say, is going to be torn down by the insurance company apparently that they have. That is not
borough involvement.

RECREATION: Councilwomen Shubeck reported that she had a copy of the treasurer’s report from the
Recreation Committee. She also said that an advertisement went into the paper with regards to 4
recreation commission seats that were available. Councilwomen Smith said that there is an importance
to having people who would like to volunteer their time to be on the committee and she hopes we get
some responses. Councilwomen Shubeck reported that recreation would like to do something in New
Columbus Park around Christmas Time. She said that the Recreation Committee was very perceptive
with that idea. Councilwomen Shubeck made a motion to authorize Barry Isett & Associates to publicly
bid the Johnson Memorial Park Project on Pennbid, seconded by Councilwomen Smith, all in favor of
motion, motion passed.

BUDGET & FINANCE: Councilwomen Kuba reported that we should be getting taxes within the next
couple of days. She stated that Deb DelFranco, Secretary/Treasurer is finalizing the 1°* quarter and to
see where we are at and we will meet shortly. She said that they need to set up a meeting with Mauch
Chunk Trust for the Police Pension.

PERSONNEL/SAFETY: Councilwomen Fox reported that we received a letter from Panther Valley School
District to see if there is going to be any changes in the bus stops for the 2024-2025 school year. They
would like us to respond by June 1. Chief Weaver said that nothing is going to change for the new
school year, everything is fine. Councilwomen Fox stated that at the next workshop meeting, she would
like to discuss the Crossing Guard salaries, we could look at that and check with other areas to find out
what the salaries are. She stated that they have not gotten an increase in quite awhile. She also stated
that the Teamsters meeting was cancelled due to a death, for the negotiations and | told the teamsters
that Tuesdays were good and | am just waiting to hear back.

Motion was made by Councilwomen Kuba to accept all committee reports, seconded by Councilwomen
Fox, all in favor of motion, motion passed.

NEW BUSINESS: Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to authorize Solicitor Yurchak to look into the
dissolving of the Nesquehoning Water Authority, seconded by Councilwomen Fox. President Hawk
stated with the make up of Council needed to do a roll call. John McArdle, President of the Water
Authority said that before Council did the vote, he would like to know what the intention is of the
Borough. He stated this was first time he was hearing about this. He asked he would like to know why?
Councilwomen Kuba stated from her opinion it would bring everything under one umbrella, she stated



the Authority really had their usage back in the day, when you really needed to float bonds and the
borough could not sustain those kinds of monies. As Solicitor Yurchak has told us an Authority has a 50
year time span. Councilwomen Smith said that it can be extended and that none of the other
authorities are shutting down, I’'m not disputing, but | was not at the previous workshop meeting, so |
miss a lot and | have gotten bits and pieces, multiple bits and pieces of what was said, what wasn’t said,
what the intention was, but | have already talked to Solicitor Yurchak about this, what does it mean on a
legal standpoint, so if the borough takes over the water authority, it makes me a borough employee and
as a borough employee, | am not allowed to sit on council, but how are you going to change the rules
after the fact that | have a four year term so legally | can’t sit here if | am an employee, so Solicitor
Yurchak will have to look into that, so | hope the motion looked at and that this motion will include
sitting down with our union representatives to see how this is going to be, doing a cost effective
analysis to see is it really going to save us money. We have worked very hard to get the Water Authority
to where we are at, so to just come in say, you know it makes it easier for everybody. | get we do not
have to take into consideration as to how the employees feel, what it would be nice, our next motion is
going to be to adopt the consortium, which we are six months behind on, even if we all sat down and all
went over everything together from day one instead of people feeling left out, that is six months that we
lost out of saving money because we did not sit down and talk this through everybody. I've heard
multiple reasons why Mr. McArdle, President of the Water Authority was not contacted, oh this person
was to tell him, that person was to tell him, you have all seen him this week and nobody thinks to say,
Hey water authority you are no longer needed, thank you for your time, that is very hurtful.
Councilwomen Fox said that is not the reason, and Councilwomen Smith, even if that is not the reason,
this is how we get ourselves into things, just like you were upset that railroad did not come to us an talk
to us and tell us what they are doing, the same thing, we did not know that you were seriously thinking
about taking over the water authority, | have worked here for 18 years and for 18 years I’'ve heard they
are going to take it over, but now we are at a stand point were three members of council can’t vote, so |
am not questioning the legality as to if you could, or if you are able to, | am questioning should we. You
said it yourself, we have a great working relationship with everybody, why rock the boat if it's not broke.
Councilwomen Kuba said to bring everybody, employees together, to bring our workforce together.
Councilwomen Smith said we do all of that now. John McArdle, President of Water Authority
mentioned that we share the workforces, but | don’t know if council is aware, the water authority has
three loans, in the amount of $609,000.00, once you bring that in the borough is only going to be able to
borrow so much money. The purpose of the authority was to be able to go after loans, go after grants, |
have two grants that a pending right now, what is going to happen to them he said. All of our bank
information, it would have to be renegotiated turned back to the borough. Councilwomen Smith said
that she has heard misinformation about things that go on in the authority and | have talked with
President Hawk about it, and | talked to Councilmen Kattner and Councilwomen Kuba about it, my
question kind of is, if you had questions about anything the way it is ran, how it is done, why won’t you
just come and ask me directly, I’'m on Council, I'm office manager, | can tell you the ins and outs of
everything that has been done since | took over the authority, David is here long enough, Robert is here
long enough to remember what we used to be versus were we are now, and nobody was there to pull us
out when we needed the help, we did it ourselves, so to sit here and say that, it is the better for
everybody. We all work together already, so | don’t see this instant need of, and | don’t want it to fall to
the wayside, and | am not saying don’t look into it, just like the consortium,you sat everybody down and
got everybody together, there is no dispute that it was the right decision to make once all the
information was presented, that is all | am asking for, that if we are going to take this type of step, we
look at every single avenue before we do that. Councilwomen Kuba said, that in December
Councilwomen Fox and myself, and we could only have three people at the meeting, when we had the
insurance meeting. Councilwomen Smith said, absolutely with the insurance, and everybody had a



unanimous vote this time, because everybody had the same information. What | am saying looked
forward into dissolving, we need to seriously look into because, | am on council because | want to be
here and | think | could do good for the community, | don’t want to be forced out because of a
technicality that we need to look into and that is all | am asking. Councilwomen Kuba responded and
said, we are doing it for that reason. Councilwomen Smith said, not by any means am | saying that, I'm
just saying, look what lack of communication got us as far as the insurance, look what lack of
communication got us with the railroad, we were like oh no they are here to ruin our town, and a simple
conversation does a world of good. Councilwomen Kuba said, that is why we said to look into. We are
not saying to do it. Councilwomen Smith said, | did not saying that you are saying to do it, I'm saying
look into all of the avenues of looking into. President Hawk did say that there is a lot to consider before
this is done. Councilwomen Smith said that you see why people get offended, with everybody is not
informed, everybody has know about this for two weeks, and if | didn’t work here, | probably would not
know what was going on either. Councilwomen Kuba said, the same why | had to call Paulie.
Councilwomen Smith asked how would you know to call and say are you going to take us over. John
McArdle, President of the Water Authority said that he is seen coming in the office at least once a day
and the other thing you need to realize also, is that the authority is waiting on DEP, the 4" hollow were
there was a lapse in getting paperwork done, we did that, now we are waiting on DEP to find out, A: do
we have to breach the 4" hollow or B: or do we need to make repairs, you are talking a considerable
amount of money either way, and once that dam gets breached, that is lose of income for the authority
because right now we are getting subsidized by Panther Creek, so there are a lot of factors that are in
here and before people start running around, this whole insurance thing was such a debacle, it could
have easily been hammered out and being told that your need to get your house in order, that is crazy. |
think our business is running very well and there is a good transition from Terry, to Shawn to myself, and
| know that Paul and David could attest to that, and our auditors. President Hawk went on to say that
we are worlds ahead of where the authority was several years ago financial and with our audits, and
what | have said, there is a lot to be considered, like John said, the dams, the 4™ is an issue, but the
authority also owns the 3™ hollow dam yet, they own the property up at the 15" hollow even though that
is current being leased to the conservation club, there is a lot to be considered. Councilwomen Smith
said, | am just asking that we truly look into, and not do something quick because we have the votes to
do it. Solicitor Yurchak said that accidently he was looking at the pension ordinance and came across
another ordinance from 1976, which extended the water authority. The useful life expires at the end of
next year, so it is either going to have to be extended or something done one way or another, as of
December 2025 it expires, there has to be a consideration. Councilwomen Smith said, so to extend us
and if at the end of the day, it turns out that all these studies and everything we do sit there and say it is
for the better, then absolutely, whether people can technically or legally vote or not, we are to do it. |
am just asking to take all the proper stages and not to make a quick rush decision, in fairness, I've heard
five different what the motion was to be, what it was going to be, what it could be, who could vote who
can’t all I am asking from all parties involved, to sit down together and talk openly, work together to
figure out what is the best route to go. If we sitting here broke, | would be the first one to say years ago
you should have taken us over then, got rid of us, dissolved us and bailed us out, but you didn’t and now
tell us a good reason as to do it now and if you could show them and they agrees, then do it, that is all |
am asking. Councilwomen Kuba responded by saying, you were on Council before we started this, so
why would your term not be good. Councilwomen Smith said that she put her heart and soul in the
water authority and that David could attest to it, and anybody who has worked for the authority as to
where we were and where we are today its my baby, and when it came down to the insurance, hey it is
going to save us money, even though | don’t have a vote or a say, but we all were in agreement to do it
this time and | would make the same decision. Councilwomen Kuba said you are welcome to your
opinion, same why don’t come at us for our opinion. Councilwomen Smith said she was not coming at



you for your opinion, I'm just saying it is hurtful, that yes, | found out about it and | came and asked you
and | asked David and asked, Paul and asked Lisa and asked Robert. Councilwomen Kuba said that | told
you what we were doing. Councilwomen Smith said yes you told me at the meeting what you were
doing, my point is that is was not addressed to all of the water authority and | feel that is should have
been and you could think differently, | heard Paulie was to tell him, Robert was supposed to tell him, this
man sits here and dedicates his time and you said it’s the same 10 people that do it, well lets show these
people the same respect that we would want to tell us. The motion is there. Councilwomen Fox asked
Solicitor Yurchak, as far as you have done with other water authorities, it's not something will happen in
the next several months? Solicitor Yurchak replied by saying it is a process, there are ordinances, and
everything else. It is not going to happen overnight. It can’t be over night. Councilmen Nalesnik said
that, Sue for the 18 years since you been here, hearing the borough is going to take over the water
authority, having separate water department, it has always been discussed and in the event of the last
two, three years, of authority members changing, decisions being made, not being made, | have been
here two and a half years almost three years, | have never gotten a report from the water authority, I've
never gotten a financial report, | have never had the water authority come here and make a
presentation on the goings on, nothing, then six months ago we attempted to join the consortium to
save the borough $55,000 to $110,000 dollars guarantee for the borough and | went to a water
authority meeting before the deadline and heard the presentation and it was turned down.
Councilwomen Smith said that she can’t speak on what the board does because | am not on the board.
Councilmen Nalesnik said that you certainly voiced your opposition at that time to it and | sat there and
listened to it. Councilwomen Smith said she did not oppose. Councilmen Nalesnik said yes you did, it is
in the minutes, but anyway. Councilwomen Smith said that the borough does receive an audit report
every year and whether you look at it or not, one is given to the borough, so to sit there and say that
you have never received anything. She said Deb, did | give you the financial audit. Deb DelFranco
response yes you did. Councilmen Nalesnik said, Sue you know where | am going with this, like these
are the projects we are looking into doing, here is where we are at, because it seems that we appoint
the members, but there is no accountability, to council. John McArdle, President of the Water Authority
said, Council never asked for any reports or anything. John also said, let’s back up about this insurance,
the insurance presentation that was given to the authority, we were just told, here it is and when we
asked for more information and another meeting, your words were, | have sat through it twice, | am not
doing it a third time. So having an attitude like that, that is very disheartening. Councilmen Nalesnik
said, there was no need for me to come to the meeting, I've heard it twice presented to the authority
and it was brought up. John McArdle, President of the Water Authority said you never brought it to the
board until that night and expected us to jump right on it. The committee made a presentation to
council on the insurance and council made a decision, that night. You are either going to do it or not.
Councilwomen Smith replied by saying, you are sitting here talking about opposition when the insurance
cards that our employees have, me being one of them, every single co-pay and everything was wrong,
so yeah, I'm sorry when | am looking at it and | am saying, but me doing what my board president asked
as an employee is not of my accord, it is because that is my job to implement whatever the president or
any board member has told me to do, opposition to, hey I’'m an employee and | have this insurance
today and my new card says something different, anybody who be opposed to that, we don’t change
anybody else’s insurance, it has to go through the FOP, Teamsters, the authority did not have that, we
only have our board to rely on that make the decision. Councilmen Nalesnik said that there was zero
change to the insurance, which is why you are now voting on the join. Councilwomen Smith said that
now that we have the correct information in front of us, yes you are right. According to BlueCross and
Blue Shield, President Quigley and myself, called them, she said if they did not agree to what was on
those cards, we have been in effect for three years, | was there for that phone call, | am sorry when Blue
Cross is telling us that your cards are correct and Joe Pilla says there wrong and the new ones and the



information is correct, yes, now | believe about doing it, it is best for everyone, but opposition for lack of
correct information, you can’t sit there and say someone is wrong for that, | was going off what was in
front me in black and white. I’'m not the only employee of the authority, even though | may be the only
employee willing to open my mouth. Councilmen Nalesnik said that he will just close with, when there
are water authority members telling me that it is time to ends this and join the borough, this is non
functional, then | am seriously going to consider . Councilwomen Smith asked how? Councilmen
Nalesnik said that it is Personnel Committee issue. Councilwomen Smith asked who on the water
authority said it is time to end it? Councilmen Nalesnik said it is a personnel committee issue and | am
not going to discuss that. Councilwomen Smith said you will so it on the floor, but you won’t say who
said it, so it is a ghost complaint. Councilmen Nalesnik said no it is not., but when | have water
authority members telling me this is ridiculous, that something needs to be done here, then | am willing
to consider it. Councilwomen Smith said, so because they didn’t agree to the insurance right away.
Councilmen Nalesnik said it is not all about the insurance. Can we take a vote President? He said.
President Hawk stated again, this is not any action to do anything, it is simply to have the Solicitor
research it and come back to us with information, as what the stipulations, what the time line is, what is
the procedure. Again we will go by a roll call vote. Deb DelFranco did roll call for the vote.
Councilwomen Fox, yes; Councilwomen Smith, abstain; Councilwomen Kuba, yes; Councilmen Nalesnik,
yes; Councilmen Kattner, abstain; President Hawk, abstain; Councilwomen Shubeck, yes. President
Hawk said 4 yes’ and 3 abstains, motion does pass.

President Hawk stated that the water authority did meet Monday and again after receiving all of the
correction information, the water authority did approve to join the borough to meet the minimum
employee requirements to join the consortium. A couple of things from that meeting, there is a
required sixty (60) day notice to Highmark that we would be changing the plan, with a target date of July
1, 2024, that would have to be provided to them by May 31, 2024. There still needs to be verification
from Highmark, that current deductibles would be honored and the deductible would not be re-set on
July 1%, again we will need verification that it is acceptable to the FOP and the Teamsters, | do
understand that we did have in December, | don’t think should be an issue and of course with the
consortium, that there is a possibility that there are refunds, it had been brought out in the past those
refunds, when both entities we part of the consortium years ago, the refunds were received by the
borough, but the authority never participated in getting any of that money back, so the authority said
Monday, again, if there are any refunds, they would have to be split between the two entities based on
a percentage basis. | know we have done a resolution for the consortium in November, is that still in
effect. According to Solicitor Yurchak that is still in effect. Councilwomen Fox asked if the figures that
were brought up in November are still true. President Hawk said that the authority received
information on before Monday, the information from Highmark with the plan information, could you get
a copy of that to the borough, he asked Councilwomen Smith. Councilwomen Smith said that Joe Pilla
brought up that we will start the six month period, that none of the employees would lose any of the
money that they paid toward their deductibles, he would get them to agree to move over any credits, so
no employees would be at a lose. When January 1% comes for new enrollment, we still have that thrity
day carry over, technically or insurance ends November 30", so there is going to be a thirty day lapse,
but that he could probably get Blue Cross to lumped into that year so we are not having to pay for a
month and lose it for a month, so he seems very confident that he get Blue Cross to approve.
Councilwomen Fox said that there is a memorandum to the insurance in the contracts for the teamsters.
Solicitor Yurchak did say that if there is a change in the insurance, then the borough would be need to
cover any additional costs. President Hawk did mention that the current borough plan is a Custom
Highmark plan, he said with the consortium, it becomes a National Network. Councilwomen Shubeck
did note that Joe Pill would not be taking any commission on this because he is on the board of the



water authority. Councilwomen Kuba made a motion to approved entering that agreement with the
consortium provided all of the criteria are meet, seconded by Councilwomen Shubeck to join into the
consortium with a start date of July 1, 2024 providing all the verification and criteria are met, all
members except Councilwomen Smith are in favor, motion passed. Councilwomen Smith said that she
would have to abstain because that she does not agree with the insurance because it is a conflict with
the teamsters. Motion passed.

Councilwomen Fox mentioned the people at the East end of the lake are complaining about odors, they
say it is either plastic or rubber in the morning hours on the days that it was windy and humid out, they
are assuming this is coming from Co-Gen. She said that she spoke with the people and told them she
was pretty sure that it was not coming from the Co-Gen. President Hawk said that Co-Gen has not
burned tires since December. Mr. Radocha asked to speak and he was told yes. He stated that all of
these people want to complain about us (Co-Gen) burning tires, but nobody wants to complain about
you always smell Ametek. | am not saying this because | work there, | am just saying there are other
facilities in the general area and one of those facilities is taking the heat for everything. Councilwomen
Fox said that it could possibly be from Ametek, because | have said as far as | know the Co-Gen is not
burning tires, so you are not smelling any rubber. Councilmen Kattner did mentioned that the man
from DEP said that if you ever have any complaints of smells or odors from properties, to just contact
DEP and they will send someone out to investigate.

President Hawk there was one more thing under New Business that he would like to bring up and that
was. He mentioned about the meeting with railroad today and one of the other topics of conversation
was Tippetts Road crossing. Tippetts Road crossing is private crossing and the railroad has petition the
PUC to convert that into a public crossing. The borough has a say in that, as to whether we approve it or
contest it. There are certain reasons they want to make it a public crossing, primarily due to them be
able to receive PennDot and federal funding to put in signals and gates up there, which | don’t think any
of us thinks is a bad idea, but there are issues with making a public crossing that may impose certain
things on the borough like maintenance of the approaches, maintaining signage. The other kind of
sticking point that the PUC brought up, is it truly a public road on the North side of that crossing. |
would like to see a motion made that we have the engineer and solicitor work together, use county
deeds, pendot liquid fuels, perhaps even survey if needed, to find out exactly what the borough owns up
there, according to George Dicarloantonio from the PUC said that we do not even own Tippetts road up
to the crossing. Councilwomen Fox said that up to the crossing and then it is railroad property and on
the other side railroad property is questionable land owners. President Hawk stated that George told
him that the Penndot guy told him our liquid fuels include Tippetts road up before it even turns to go
towards the crossing, that whole crossing area is not on ours, not considered. So before we make any
decision to approve or contest their application with the PUC, we need to find out what we own, so if
we were to approve the conversion of that crossing, what would it entail us as far as undertaking, again |
think we should have a motion for the solicitor and engineer to determine what the ownership is and
the consequences of us making that a public crossing. Councilwomen Fox made motion to authorize
Solicitor and the engineer to work together to determine ownership and consequences, seconded by
Councilwomen Smith. President Hawk said that one of the things that George pointed out was if that is
private roadway, that would preclude it from becoming a public crossing, unless the borough would be
willing condemn or do an eminate domain take over part of that road, it does not go anywhere that the
public can use it, it is all prior once you pass those railroad tracks. Councilmen Nalesnik said that he
thought the railroad was resigned to that situation up there, that it is what it is, they were not dwelling
on it when realized that half of it was prior. President Hawk said their intent according to George, they
would like every crossing on that line to become public because it opens up federal funding for them.
All in favor of motion, motion passed.



OLD BUSINESS: NONE

ADJOURMENT: Motion was made by Councilmen Kattner and seconded by Councilwomen Fox to
adjourn at 7:45 PM

Deborah DelFranco
Secretary/Treasurer



